
Date Published:12 March 2019     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Wednesday 20 March 2019 at 11.30 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence. 

Jo Moore

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 21 November 2018 

Jo Moore

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests by members. 

Jo Moore

4  GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

To receive a verbal update on the activities and work plan of the 
Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee.   

Cllr Kevin 
Cromwell

5  GLOUCESTERSHIRE LOCAL NATURE PARTNERSHIP (GLNP) (Pages 
9 - 14)

To receive a presentation on how the Gloucestershire Local Nature 
Partnership (GLNP) can support the local economic prosperity of 
Gloucestershire. 

Doug Hulyer
(Chair)

Jackie Jobes 
(Manager) 

6  GFIRST LEP UPDATE (Pages 15 - 24)

A report from the Gloucestershire First (GFirst) Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP). 

Dev 
Chakraborty
GFirst LEP



    

The committee to receive an update on the delivery of the Growth 
Programme; preparations for developing a Local Industrial Strategy and 
progress of the new LEP/local authority sponsored Inward Investment 
Programme.  

7  GLOUCESTERSHIRE BUSINESS RATES PILOT UPDATE (Pages 25 - 
30)

To update the committee on the progress of the Business Rates Pilot 
2018/19 and to agree a process for the future allocation of funding.   

Andrew 
Cummings 

8  STRATEGIC PLANNING (Pages 31 - 44)

The committee to consider - 

1) An update on the progress of the strategic planning process for 
Gloucestershire (report attached);  

2) The Barriers to Development Action Plan and Planning 
Development Charter (report attached)  

Mike Dawson 

Annette Roberts  

9  STRATEGIC PROJECT DELIVERY UPDATE 

To receive verbal updates on the progression of key strategic growth 
projects at local councils  

Council 
representatives 

10  FORWARD PLAN (Pages 45 - 48)

To consider the updated committee work plan and suggest items for 
consideration at future meetings.  

Cllr Lynden 
Stowe
(Chair) 

11  FUTURE MEETING DATES 

To note that the Committee is due to meet on the following dates in 2019:

Wednesday 5 June 2019
Wednesday 4 September 2019 
Wednesday 20 November 2019

The start times of meetings may be subject to change (new start time of 
11.30 am). This will allow the meetings of the Strategic Planning Leader’s 
Board meeting to be held at Shire Hall the same day. 

Cllr Lynden 
Stowe 
(Chair) 

Membership –  Cllr Lynden Stowe (Chairman) Cllr Tim Gwilliam, Cllr Paul James, Cllr Steve 
Jordan, Cllr Christopher Hancock, Cllr Doina Cornell, Cllr Rob Bird, Dev Chakraborty and Mally 
Findlater

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Monitoring Officer, 
Jane Burns 01452 328472 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk) 
prior to the start of the meeting.

mailto:Jane.Burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c)

(d) 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
Members are required to sign the attendance list.

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH 
JOINT COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Wednesday 21 November 2018, in the Cabinet Suite at Shire Hall, Gloucester.

PRESENT:
Cllr Tim Gwilliam
Cllr Steve Jordan
Cllr Christopher Hancock
Cllr Lynden Stowe

Cllr Doina Cornell
Cllr Rob Bird
Cllr Dave Waters

154. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllrs Paul James. 

There were no substitutes at the meeting. 

155. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2018 were agreed and signed as 
an accurate record of that meeting. 

The following corrections were made at the meeting: - 

a) GFirst LEP Update - Dev Chakraborty (Deputy Chief Executive of GFirst 
LEP) clarified that his update to the committee included an update on the 
Local Industrial Strategy

b) Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership (GLNP) Green Infrastructure 
Policy Pledge - Mike Dawson (Chair of the GEGJC Senior Officer Group) 
gave an update on the signing of the Green Infrastructure Pledge by the 7 
district authorities. He confirmed that, following the GLNP Conference held in 
October 2018, all 7 authorities had signed up to the pledge.

156. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting.

157. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Vice Chairman of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny Committee, Cllr 
Kevin Cromwell, gave an overview of the work of the scrutiny committee. 

He confirmed that one of the committees’ local held meetings had been held at the 
Cheltenham Borough Council Offices on 31 October 2018. A review of the 
outcomes of this meeting and the meetings held at Tewkesbury Borough Council 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

and Cotswold District Council would be considered in March 2020, following the 
conclusion of the cycle of meetings held at each of the 6 local authorities.  

The scrutiny committee meeting planned for later that day had been cancelled and 
would used as a work planning session involving the Vice Chairman, GCC 
(Gloucestershire County Council) officers, and lead members, Cllrs Joe Harris and 
Kate Haigh. The next scrutiny committee meeting would be held at the Forest of 
Dean District Council Offices on 14 February 2019.  

Seeking advice on the Government Call for Evidence Landscapes Review 
Consultation, the Committee was advised it would be for each local authority to 
make individual submissions to the consultation. Committee Chairman, Cllr Lynden 
Stowe, stressed the importance of each authority making a submission before the 
consultation deadline at the end of December 2018.

158. EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS ACTIVITY REPORT 

Pete Carr, Lead Commissioner: Skills and Employment, gave an update on the 
progress of the European Social Fund skills and employability projects and the 
Gloucestershire Employment and Skills Board (GESB).

Key priorities for the Employment and Skills Board included; apprenticeships; 
stronger links with schools, colleges and local businesses; improved careers 
support for schools; and input to the Gloucestershire Local Industrial Strategy. 

The committee noted that the next Employment and Skills Board meeting would be 
held on 13 December 2018, at which it was hoped new members from the private 
sector would help strengthen contributions from this area, and assist in developing 
a more balanced representation. Ongoing work with district authorities continued, 
for which regular updates would be provided at future meetings. 

The committee welcomed the proposal to use additional ESF funding to focus on 
the high rate of permanent exclusions from schools in Gloucestershire. It was noted 
that at the last board meeting, there had been a request to engage in discussions 
with secondary schools on this escalating problem. 

Acknowledging concerns about the need to become more effective in the sharing of 
information between the districts, the committee noted the intention to explore 
opportunities on how to better share information on the GESB Action Plan and on 
adopting a more joined approach to responding to consultations and initiatives from 
which the county might benefit as a whole. 

Committee members were asked to consider how best to improve the situation in 
order to manage the expectations of district councillors and officers and to submit 
their ideas to Pete Carr for future discussions. It was also suggested that the Senior 
Officer Group consider how best to maximise resources for the sharing of 
information between the districts.  

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

A member expressed concern about the perceived emphasis on academic ability 
and achievement in contrast with the development of non-academic skills. It was 
agreed the points raised during the discussion should be referred to the Senior 
Officer Group for further consideration. 

159. GFIRST LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP UPDATE 

Dev Chakraborty (Deputy Chief Executive of GFirst LEP) gave an update on the 
Gloucestershire Growth Deal Programme, including the progress of some of the 
Growth Deal funded projects and an update on the Local Industrial Strategy for 
Gloucestershire. Attached to the report were the most up to date spreadsheets for 
the Growth Deal Programme (reporting for the period up to 30 September 2018). 

The documents can be viewed on the GFirst website at the following link: 
http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/  

It was noted that, in terms of the Growth Deal, there had been no significant change 
since the report presented at the previous meeting, (5 September 2018). 

To date, the LEP had ‘out turned’ £56.2m from a total of £101.7m. Actual spend 
was £52m. Recent highlights included confirmation of a £27m investment in the 
Merrywalks re-development; planning approval for a second phase of student 
accommodation at the Blackfriars site (providing a further 190 student units) and 
confirmation of the Skyborne commercial pilot training centre at Gloucestershire 
Airport.

The Gloucester Transport Hub had fully opened; the funding agreement for the 
Cheltenham Spa Railway Station Scheme was signed and scheme design 
approved; the GlosCol Cinderford Campus was fully opened and the Hartpury 
University Agri-Tech Hub (Tech to Plate) had been approved for funding, with the 
agreement due in December. 

Reporting on the Gloucestershire Inward Investment Bid (a joint bid between 
Gloucestershire County Council and the district councils) the Deputy Chief 
Executive advised the committee that recruitment advertisements for three new 
posts had been advertised for commencement in January 2019. The deadline for 
submitting applications for the posts was 22 November 2019. District council 
colleagues had been asked to participate on the interview panels. 

The GFirst LEP Annual Review was held at Hartpury College on 14 November 
2018. Three key requests were made during the review. They included; requests for 
volunteers to work with schools across the County; requests to join one of the 
GFirst sector specific business groups and volunteers; and requests to engage with 
the LEP on the development of the Local Industrial Strategy for Gloucestershire. 
Approximately 60 people had pledged their services. 

Included in the LEP Review had been consideration of the Government LEP 
Boundary Review. The Gloucestershire LEP has stated a preference to remain in 

Page 3

http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/


Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

the current geographical position. Completion date for the boundary review would 
be March 2020.

The committee noted several pieces of work for which members were asked to 
share news of the publications with district council colleagues. One piece of work 
was to consider the Local Transport Plan, for which members were asked to 
encourage district colleagues to submit views. In addition, it was suggested the 
district authorities consider making a submission to the Local Industrial Strategy. 

Government funding for a new government position, ‘Senior Research Manager’ 
was noted. Again, members were encouraged to share this information with district 
colleagues.  

Outlining the anticipated timelines for some of the pieces of work, the Deputy Chief 
Executive suggested members maintain a watch and brief to keep themselves 
informed of current activities. He also suggested district authorities identify priority 
issues and considerations. 

The committee requested a detailed update on progress of some of the activities at 
the next meeting.

160. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH CAPITAL INVESTMENT PIPELINE 
(GEGCIP) 

Claire Edwards (GCC Team Leader - Economic Growth & Strategic Planning) gave 
an update on the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Capital Investment Pipeline 
(GEGCIP). (The pipeline was previously known as the Gloucestershire 
Infrastructure Investment Pipeline). 

Members were informed that the Capital Investment Pipeline (CIP) document would 
be used to monitor the strategic infrastructure pipeline and to assist in considering 
which projects require resourcing as potential priority bids for future funding 
opportunities. 

Having recently undergone an in-depth period of review by the Senior Officer 
Group, the updated CIP included a revised list of categories to identify which 
projects might be considered suitable for investment. The categories included: 
innovation; skills and employment; business environment; infrastructure (including 
energy and digital); housing; regeneration/place shaping and others. 

Furthermore, the recent review and mapping exercise pilot had resulted in a 
number of recommendations for the committee to consider; these included; 

a) Visible fields to relate to project name (description); category; theme; current 
position; cots; timeframe and owner; 

b) Out of date projects to not feature on the public facing tool until they are 
updated (to avoid reputational risk); the online public version to be updated 
every 6 months (as a minimum);

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

c) To work closely with the LEP; a revised Expression of Interest form will be 
agreed to capture new project proposals that fit the re-defined growth 
enabling criteria listed – this will be a standard approach irrespective of 
whether an enquiry or opportunity comes via the LEP (or public sector 
partners) to ensure a single pipeline can be developed and maintained; 

d) The next phase of the CIP to look to add in impacts and a portfolio approach 
to allow a larger set of interlinked projects to be funded, and a process for 
prioritisation.

Data from the CIP would be made available to members and updated through the 
GEGJC.  

The document is a live document and will continue to evolve. The committee was 
advised to contact report author, Jonathan Medlin, if assistance in understanding 
the mapping was required. 

The committee noted the report and suggested the Senior Officer Group consider 
how best to improve and develop the pipeline. It was agreed that, subject to the 
agreement of the Senior Officer Group, the early stages of the pipeline 
development for the Gloucestershire Local Industry Strategy be progressed.

Members were advised that it was the responsibility of the individual authorities to 
ensure the Senior Officer Group was updated on changes to the CIP. The 
programme to be shared as a joint arrangement between the district and borough 
councils. 

Information on who would be representing each authority would be required. 

The report recommended that the CIP mapping tool be accessed via a link from the 
GCC Strategic Infrastructure Webpages (including guidance on how to use the 
map). At the time of the meeting, the webpage had not been produced. Members 
were asked to provide their individual links to provide access to the webpages. It 
was anticipated a soft launch of the mapping tool would be made in early 2019. 

161. STRATEGIC PLANNING CO-ORDINATION 

Mike Dawson, Chair of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
Senior Officer Group, updated members on the work of the Strategic Planning 
Coordinator. 

Members were informed that 2 meetings of the Senior Officer Group had been held, 
plus 2 meetings of the Strategic Planning Leaders Board. It was proposed that an 
informal agreement document be produced as a ‘statement of common ground’ to 
support the planning process at each of the local planning authorities. The 
document would be updated over time to encompass any new developments. 

The committee was asked to endorse the proposal to adopt a statement of common 
ground approach. Subject to the committee agreement, officers to produce a draft 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

proposal for consideration at the next Strategic Planning Leaders Board meeting 
and approval by the individual local authorities. 

In supporting the proposal, (to adopt a ‘common ground approach’), members 
stressed the importance of linking the draft statement to the Vision 2050 
programme and to the county’s spatial planning process, (for the period to 2050 
and beyond). 

The committee noted the update and endorsed the proposal to draft a statement of 
common ground for consideration by the Strategic Planning Leaders Board.

162. GLOUCESTERSHIRE BUSINESS RATE POOL 

David Stanley, (Accountancy Manager at Stroud District Council) gave an update 
on the Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool (GBRP) and Strategic Economic 
Development Fund. The GBRP was set up to maximise the business rate income 
retained within the County and to support the economic growth within the 
geographic area overseen by the LEP. The Pool is led by a management team 
represented by the Chief Financial Officers from each of the district authorities.

It was noted that the existing 100% business rates pilot was due to end on 31 
March 2019. An application for Gloucestershire to be considered as a 75% pilot 
area was submitted to Government in late September 2018, with successful pilot 
areas due to be announced in early December 2018. 

The committee received an update on the cumulative amount of funding generated 
by the Business Pool to the Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF). The 
award of funds, (involving discussions with the Chief Executives and Leaders of 
each participating local authority), is subject to the unanimous agreement of each 
member of the Business Pool. 

Members were reminded that each Joint Committee member needed authority from 
their respective councils to make decisions on behalf of that authority in relation to 
the GBRP and to the SEDF. Members accepted this requirement but requested that 
sufficient notice was given for them to consider the decision they would be required 
to make. 

At the time of the meeting, the cumulative amount of funding generated by the 
GBRP for the SEDF since 2013/14 was £1.134 million, with £0.798 million of this 
amount arising from the 2017/18 pool outturn position, (these funds will be available 
to be drawn upon from January 2019.

The forecast position for the amount of funding generated in 2018/19 indicted £2.9 
million would be available to the SEDF from the 100% Business Rates Pilot. It was 
noted that the level of business rates retained and the SEDF share of the business 
rates pilot would need to be derived from pilot members’ estimates of the rates 
collection forecast.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

To reduce the level of risk associated with backdated appeals and the possibility of 
having to make refunds, the committee noted the advice of the Business Pool 
Management Team, advising that ‘resource allocation’ decisions on pilot funds 
should be made following the announcement of the 2018/19 outturn position in April 
2019. This would enable the respective councils to make decisions following 
clarification of the amounts of business rates to be retained or distributed. Funding 
from the business rates pilot would not be available until the 2019/20 financial year. 

Members recalled that at the September committee meeting, the GEGJC had 
agreed to consider the following ‘in principle’ funding requests, based on a report to 
this meeting. 

a) County Council and LEP economic intelligence work costs; 
b) Business case for improvement works to Junction 10 of the M5 Motorway 
c) County Council committee costs  

In addition, the committee to give consideration to the process for considering and 
prioritising future funding and investment requests, where it was suggested the 
committee establish and agree an approach to identifying eligibility criteria and 
approval of the award of funding to the SEDF. Any suggestions on the proposed 
approach to be referred to the Senior Officer Group for consideration, the criteria of 
which was set out in the committee report.

Seeking clarification on the decision-making powers of the committee, it was 
explained that final decisions on future funding bids would be authorised by the 
committee, following recommendations by the Senior Officer Group. It was 
suggested members report back to their individual authorities to enquire how local 
decision-making arrangements could be aligned with the decision making process 
of the committee. 

In noting the report, the committee

RESOLVED to 

1. Note the Strategic Economic Development Fund balance and commitments, 
as indicated at Appendix A of the report; 

2. Agree the allocation of SEDF balances against the projects provisionally 
agreed in September 2018, as set out below: - 

i. £275,000 of reserves currently held in Strategic Economic 
Development Fund are used for the purposes of revenue funding 
contribution/support for the M5 Junction 10 improvement scheme 
(reserve funding available from January 2019)

ii. £50,000 of reserves currently held in the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund are used for the purposes of commissioning 
additional Economic Intelligence to support the work of the LEP and 
GCC Data and Analysis Team, in refreshing the current Strategic 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

Economic Plan and working towards the preparation of an Industrial 
Strategy for Gloucestershire (Reserve Funding available from January 
2019)

iii. The Senior Officer Group is requested to consider the eligibility, 
criteria and project approval process for the assessment of future 
funding bids from the Strategic Economic Development Fund and 
make recommendations to the Joint Committee at its meeting on 20 
March 2019.

163. FORWARD PLAN 

The Forward Plan for the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee was 
circulated at the meeting. Members were asked to consider the work plan and send 
any comments to Mike Dawson or Claire Edwards after the meeting. 

a) In addition to the items incorporated on to the forward plan, the committee 
was asked to include a review of the aspiration to achieve National Park 
Status for the Cotswold AONB to the Joint Committee work plan. In 
considering the request, it was suggested that a progress report on the 
outcome of the Glover Report Call for Evidence assignment be provided by 
the Cotswold District and Stroud District Councils at the next meeting. In 
addition, an update on the item to be included as a standing item to form part 
of the committee work plan. 

b) A member asked for an update on the Cyber Security Facility West of 
Cheltenham Project at the March meeting. The request was noted with a 
suggestion that a general end of year update be provided, reporting the 
progress of all plans, (including the West of Cheltenham Cyber Security 
project), at the March meeting. An update on the Cheltenham Cyber Security 
Project will be included in the Strategic Planning Co-ordination item at the 
next meeting.  

164. FUTURE MEETING DATES 

The committee noted the dates of forthcoming meetings:

Wednesday 20 March 2019
Wednesday 5 June 2019
Wednesday 4 September 2019
Wednesday 20 November 2019

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12.45 pm

Page 8



GLOUCESTERSHIRE LOCAL NATURE PARTNERSHIP 

Date Wednesday 20 March 2019

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC) 

Purpose of Report To inform the GEGJC of the Gloucestershire Local Nature 
Partnership’s (GLNP) new strategy and activities to support local 
economic prosperity, including proposed strategic mapping tool

Background Documents N/A

Location/Contact for 
inspection of 
Background Documents

www.gloucestershirenature.org.uk/projects/ 

Officer
Jackie Jobes – Partnership Manager
Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership
Tel. no: 07586 570685
Email address: jackie@gloucestershirenature.org.uk

Recommendations To note the report

Reasons for 
recommendations

Contained in the content of this report, specifically Paragraphs 5.1 – 
5.3

Resource Implications
The LNP is currently funded by partner contributions, including 
Gloucestershire County Council, six district councils and GFirst LEP. 
Contribution of officer time is likely to be required towards delivery of 
actions.

Page 9

Agenda Item 5

http://www.gloucestershirenature.org.uk/projects/


MAIN REPORT CONTENTS

Background 

1. THE GLOUCESTERSHIRE LOCAL NATURE PARTNERSHIP

1.1. The Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership (GLNP) is formed of over 30 
organisations from public, private and third sector bodies from across the county, all 
working together to recognise and facilitate the importance of embedding nature's 
value in local decisions for the benefit of nature, people and the economy. 

1.2. Our partnership provides a strong and innovative voice for the environment sector 
and is seen by the Department for Environment and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) as a key 
figure in the local delivery of the Government's 25 Year Environment Plan and a key 
local partner for Local Enterprise Partnerships. 

1.3. Our Partners include all six district councils and the County Council, Cotswold 
Conservation Board, Natural England, Forestry Commission, Environment Agency, 
Gloucestershire Local Enterprise Partnership (GFirst LEP), Public Health, 
Countryside Protection for Rural England (SPRE), Farming and Wildlife Advisory 
Group (FWAG), Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust (GWT), Gloucestershire Rural 
Community Council (GRCC), National Trust, Wildfowl and Wetlands Trust (WWT), 
Cotswold Water Park Trust, Severn Rivers Trust, University of Gloucestershire 
(UoG), Royal Agricultural University (RAU), a senior representative of farming and 
landowning interests, Gloucestershire Centre for Environmental Records (GCER) 
and more.

1.4. A review undertaken in 2017 determined a strong need for the Partnership to have 
allocated resource in order to achieve its full potential. Funding was then raised 
from several partners, including each District, the County Council and GFirst LEP, 
to support these aspirations and so in June 2018 a Partnership Manager was 
employed on a three-year contract – Jackie Jobes. 

2. OUR VISION

2.1. A healthy and valued natural environment, sustaining the economy and well-being 
of Gloucestershire.

3. OUR MISSION

3.1. Championing the essential role of Gloucestershire’s natural environment in 
sustaining a vibrant, healthy, prosperous economy and society.

4. OUR OBJECTIVES

4.1. A greatly enhanced network of places, rich in wildlife and providing a wide range of 
services to our communities and economy;

4.2. A better understanding of the value of nature to the people and economy of the 
County;

4.3. More people engaging with and enjoying the benefits of nature; and

Page 10



4.4. A suite of tools that will help decision-makers, planners and others make informed 
judgments on the benefits of nature-based solutions.

4.5. These will all be delivered through the three work themes of “Space to Grow”, 
“Space to Thrive” and “Space to Champion” – aligned with the Government’s 25 
Year Environment Plan and a readiness to embrace sustainable growth for the 
county.

5. HOW GLNP CAN SUPPORT LOCAL ECONOMIC PROSPERITY

5.1. The GLNP facilitates and coordinates partners to develop and deliver an array of 
innovative, cross-discipline partnership projects and initiatives, in line with our 3-
year strategy objectives. These include the continued support to GFirst LEP to draw 
down ERDF funding and future UK Shared Prosperity Fund for the county; creating 
a nature recovery network for the county and supporting a regional and national 
approach; driving the delivering of green infrastructure through policy and 
development; growing the solutions to health issues and inequalities across the 
county through nature-based interventions; influencing the future of the Vision 2050 
Concordat; supporting the agriculture agenda via a county food strategy and new 
environmental land management schemes (ELMS); and, increasing benefit from 
and access to high quality green space and the diversity of those seeking to do so. 

5.2. High quality nature is not a barrier to economic growth but can powerfully 
complement and contribute to it. In particular, green infrastructure – for better 
placemaking, attractive locations where people want to live and work, as well as 
increasing health and wellbeing. 

5.3. One project that is pertinent to share is our Integrated Environmental Mapping Tool 
(IEMT) which we aspire will identify the GLNP as a key partner in the design and 
delivery of sustainable economic growth in the county. 

6. INTEGRATED ENVIRONMENTAL MAPPING TOOL [IEMT]

6.1. The IEMT aims to draw together environmental data with economic and societal 
data from across the county of Gloucestershire to interpret and identify 
opportunities to align with, and ultimately underpin, delivery of local economic 
growth.

6.2. This tool is being created in response to many recent changes in law and policy, 
including:

6.2.1. The 25 Year Environment Plan for a ‘Nature Recovery Network’ that is to be 
represented spatially and the drive toward a Natural Capital approach.

6.2.2. The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requiring planning 
policies and decisions to contribute to and enhance the natural and local 
environment by establishing coherent ecological networks that are more 
resilient to current and future pressures [para 170].

6.2.3. The review of a new Environmental Land Management (ELM) scheme

Page 11



6.2.4. The likely introduction of the need to achieve Biodiversity Net Gains for all 
development, of which is already mentioned within the NPPF [para 8;32; 
170;174;175). 

6.3. The Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership is working closely with key partners 
including the Environment Agency and Gloucestershire Wildlife Trust, among others 
to deliver an initial pilot in Gloucester City and its tributaries.

6.4. The IEMT would seek to provide a strategic framework for delivery of growth across 
Gloucestershire that both utilises and enhances the county’s natural assets as an 
integral part of the growth programme. Useful for a range of practitioners and 
stakeholders, including planners, developers, conservationists, local planning 
authorities. 

7. WHAT ARE THE BENEFITS OF SUCH A TOOL?

7.1. By delivering greater and multiple outcomes, which can be adapted to meet 
changing needs and priorities, the IEMT will have the capability to provide the 
following added value to the ‘business as usual’ approach:

7.1.1. Drive forward viable and effective environmental management solutions 
which underpin Gloucestershire’s growth programme and enable 
sustainable development.

7.1.2. Enable a holistic ‘place based’ approach which delivers multiple benefits, 
including health, wellbeing, prosperity and biodiversity.

7.1.3. Focus resources at areas of greatest overall risk and/or opportunity.

7.1.4. Identify barriers to delivery of growth and establish solutions for working 
together in a more effective and efficient way.

7.1.5. Coordinate investment planning so that collective resources work harder, 
maximise benefits and ensure efficiencies in delivery.

7.1.6. Showcase environmental investment opportunities by identifying returns on 
investment to help unlock new mechanisms for delivery e.g. inform planning 
obligations, external funding bids, private sector engagement.

7.1.7. Support Planning Authorities in establishing coherent ecological networks 
that are more resilient to current and future pressures, whilst also supporting 
their Duty to Cooperate and requirements within the NPPF. 

7.1.8. Enable developers and planners to have the tools and information they 
need to engage in adequate environmental design early in the planning 
process to ensure smooth and speedy applications – time and cost effective 
for all parties. 

7.1.9. Build resilience to climate change – Providing a strategic framework that 
takes a long-term view of the action needed to mitigate impacts on growth, 
people and the environment.  

Page 12



7.1.10. Enhance Gloucestershire’s natural environment – Creating a shared vision 
for conserving, enhancing and reconnecting the environment, including 
biodiversity, thus avoiding duplication of resources and making investment 
more effective.

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1. The Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership are looking for support to help 
compile, test, interrogate and apply the tool in its Phase 1 Pilot stage. 

8.2. Phase 1 will have a strong focus on the environmental impacts of water, working 
closely with the Environment Agency. We hope that this initial phase will provide a 
powerful reflection of its possibilities to deliver multidisciplinary benefits and 
therefore drive the further investment in its second and third stages, as well as 
funding its ongoing management and maintenance.

8.3. The GLNP also aspire to be recognised as a key strategic partner in the design and 
delivery of growth within the county by the GEGJC. 

Page 13



Page 14



GFirst LEP Update for GEGJC meeting 20th March 2019
Prepared by Dev Chakraborty (Deputy Chief Executive GFirst LEP)

1) Gloucestershire Growth Deal – attachments 
Attached to this report are the most up to date spreadsheets (up to 31st December 2018) for 
the Growth Deal programme.
These highlight;

i) ‘Forward Look’ – a comprehensive list of all Growth Deal funded projects with a 
focus on their current status. 

ii) ‘Projects Summary’ – a comprehensive list of all Growth Deal funded projects 
that highlights forecasted outputs from each project. 
NB on all metrics, the forecast exceeds the total commitment in the Growth 
Deal. 

These documents are also available on GFirst LEP’s website; 
http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/

2) Growth Deal – ‘Headlines’ (to end of Q3, 2018/19)

The attached summary reports reflect the position of the Growth Deal programme for the Q3 
2018-19 period (1st October to 31st Dec 2018).

Q3 has been a relatively quiet period in terms of activity on projects with several major 
completions having taken place in Q2 (Gloucester Growth Hub, Gloucester Transport Hub, A40 
roundabout scheme).

Q3 has seen a number of projects mobilizing however and progress will accelerate into the first 
half of 2019.

Highlights

Confirmation of the transfer of promoter role for the Cheltenham Cyber Park scheme from 
Cheltenham Borough Council to Gloucestershire County Council was confirmed in December, 
with an initial £3.3m of funds approved for business case development and initial design and 
planning works. On this basis, the £3.3m has been included as ‘out-turn’ (under the delegated 
scheme arrangements) within the £62.3m reported to date.

The Merrywalks Shopping Centre scheme in Stroud is progressing rapidly with £1.4m of LGF 
funds claimed to date and the full £3m on track to be claimed by f/y year-end (31-3-19).

Page 15

Agenda Item 6

http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/


Cheltenham Spa railway station has also made its first claim of £421k and is now mobilizing for 
a full start on site post the 2019 Cheltenham Festival with completion expected late in 2019.

The A419 scheme in Stonehouse is also now gearing up with a full start on site expected in 
April/May.

Confirmed (attributable) jobs created to date are 1,799 with a modest increase of 28 jobs 
attributable to Growth Deal projects in Q3. Growth is still encouraging at the Berkeley site with 
a major announcement to be made shortly about a high profile business to locate there. 

Housing completions are very modest to date (49) however, this is in line with forecasts as the 
bulk of the planned housing outputs are at the back end of the programme and into the post 
programme period out to 2025.  

Skills outputs are tracking above forecast. The uplift in skills/learning space above forecast in 
2018/19 is largely due to the inclusion of the Berkeley UTC in the figures. Whilst not directly 
funded by LGF funds, it would not have happened without the funding of the GREEN centre 
next door and so has been included as an outcome. 

Total expected leverage for the programme is well above target both in terms of direct match 
confirmed to date and also ‘follow-on’ investment with a total leverage now expected in excess 
of £350m.

In respect of follow-on investment Gloucestershire County Council have approved the 
preparation of a planning application for a mixed-use development on the Quayside House site 
for a health hub with key worker accommodation and a 500 space multi-storey car park, with a 
combined investment value of £24m. 

Gloucester City Council have now also submitted their planning application for the Kings 
Quarter re-development which will potentially create a further £80m-£100m of investment in 
Gloucester City. Work on the Gloucester Railway station scheme is also expected to start in late 
2019.

Based on the risk ratings for the projects on the summary attached and the progress against 
outputs reported to date, the programme is rated as ‘Green’ overall with most schemes 
progressing to plan through the construction phases and many into the early delivery phase. 
We are spending to plan and expect to achieve a zero variance for the ‘spend’ profile at the end 
of 2018/19.

Page 16



                  3) Inward Investment project

This is the collaborative bid with the County Council and the six District Councils supported by 
ERDF European funding to set up a dedicated team to focus on inward investment in the 
county, in particular (non- EU) foreign direct investment.

The overall project value is £1million with 50% coming via ERDF and is for a period of 3 years – 
January 2019 to December 2021.

The focus is on 4 key sectors; Cyber, Agri-Tech, Advanced Engineering & Manufacturing & 
Renewables.

The team are now in place;

Head of Inward Investment – Ali Chafekar - previously Head of The North American Desk of 
Advantage – West Midlands (A-WM), managing new Inward Investment projects from the 
America’s collaboratively with the Department for International Trade (DIT), Local Authorities, 
and private sector contacts. Ali also managed an overseas office in Pittsburgh, USA to develop 
new Americas projects. He was involved in the mission that twinned Birmingham UK with 
Chicago, USA, leading to direct airline links from Birmingham to New York and New Jersey. 

He has worked as a Management Consultant on behalf of the DIT, as a Head of Partnerships 
working with LEP partners, Growth Hubs and Embassy Commercial Posts to attract Inward 
Investors to the Midlands.  This further involved working on trade related projects and in the 
Advanced Engineering, Food, Logistics and Medi – Healthcare sectors.

Inward Investment Manager – Chris Lau - Chris has held a number of Inward Investment roles 
attracting foreign investment for the UK, representing local, central government as well as 
working overseas. Working at MIDAS, the Inward Investment Agency for Manchester, Chris 
focused on the China market as well as the Advanced Manufacturing sector. Chris has also 
worked at the British Consulate in Hong Kong supporting Chinese businesses to invest in the 
UK. At the DIT, Chris headed up the Northern Powerhouse campaign of attracting investment 
into large-scale regeneration and infrastructure projects, the accumulate GDV of projects he 
was involved in was over £2 billion. 

Inward Investment Administrator – Lauren Brumby – Lauren has come from Gloucestershire 
College where she was an Employment Coach. She was also involved with the implementation 
of the T-Level pilot scheme, which the college was selected to trial for the academic year 
2018/19.

Page 17



Short-term work plan includes; produce Stakeholder engagement plan, Business engagement 
plan, Investigate data systems, confirm Customer journey, start developing marketing collateral 
including a new website/video footage.

4) The Gloucestershire Sustainable Energy Strategy

This strategy sets out how Gloucestershire can play its part in achieving a zero carbon energy 
future by committing to become carbon neutral by 2050.

There is emphasis on embedding this strategy into Local plans.

The ambitions will also become key factors in the development of new LEP funded projects 
within the county. 

Ambitions within the strategy include;

Committing to reduce carbon emissions – Gloucestershire to become carbon neutral by 2050, 
reducing carbon emissions by 60% by 2030 (on 2005 levels) and to virtually zero by 2050 with 
any residual emissions offset by additional tree planting.

By 2028, HALF of all new vehicles in Gloucestershire will be Electric vehicles.

Decarbonising heat – heat demand in the county (for heating buildings and for industrial 
processes) needs to be decarbonised (ie not reliant on fossil fuel gas or oil) by 2040.

Every existing building (domestic & non-domestic) upgraded to at least an EPC rating of C by 
2035, and upgrading fuel poor homes to at last a C by 2030.

All new developments in the county to be net carbon negative and smart-energy enabled from 
2020.

The Gloucestershire Sustainable Energy Strategy is available online at;

https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/gloucestershire-energy-strategy-2019.pdf 

5) Local Industrial Strategy

All LEPs have been tasked by Government to produce a Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) for their 
area. GFirst LEP are in the final wave (Wave 3).

Driving Productivity is the primary focus, it is not a bidding document.

Page 18

https://www.gfirstlep.com/downloads/2019/gloucestershire-energy-strategy-2019.pdf


Gloucestershire’s LIS will set the direction for the future of Gloucestershire’s economy. It will 
help to inform local choices, prioritise local action and, where appropriate, help to inform 
decisions at a national level. 

It will guide local investment alongside funding which is granted to Local Enterprise 
Partnerships by central government and other national schemes. 

To prepare our LIS, we first need to develop a robust and up-to-date evidence base to identify 
the strengths and challenges within our local economy.
We will then use the information contained within the evidence base to formulate a series of 
future strategic priorities for inclusion within the LIS.

We plan to shortly release a ‘Call for Evidence’ to enable stakeholders to submit information 
they think should be included within the evidence base and should be taken into consideration 
during the preparation of the LIS’s emerging priorities. Our Call for Evidence is open to 
submissions from any stakeholder in the public, private or voluntary sectors with an interest in 
the LIS. We will particularly welcome submissions from Gloucestershire businesses with 
specialist industry knowledge.

The evidence base is critical and we are working closely with the team at Gloucestershire 
County Council to produce this. This will involve firstly conducting an audit of the key 
information currently held, identify the gaps, then move to close the gaps and commission 
analysis.

Internally a ‘Task & Finish’ group has been set up alongside an ‘Evidence Base Review Group’.

There are 5 national Foundations (Place, People, Ideas & Innovation, Business Environment and 
Infrastructure) that we need to bear in mind and 4 Grand Challenges (AI & Data, Ageing 
Society, Clean Growth and the Future of Mobility) to see how we can help address these.

We have produced a timetable for the overall production of the LIS and we are looking forward 
to working with partners in the public and private sectors to produce an aspirational Local 
Industrial Strategy for Gloucestershire that is fully supported by a comprehensive evidence 
base.

The deadline for final submission is March 2020.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Growth Deal Projects Summary Key
As at 31-12-18 Funding approved and progressing

Funding allocated but pending final board approval
Current Total Forecasts with Actuals where available

Project Name Growth Fund Category Homes Total jobs
Private 

Leverage £m's
Public Sector 
Leverage £m's

Commercial 
Floorspace m2 

Employment 
Land Ha

Skills 
Capital m2 App'ships

BCR (Road 
schemes)

Growth Hub Amalgamated 9,400,000£             Business Support 0 6644 £0.05 £27.6 1477 0 3800 0 N/A

Merrywalks Centre, Stroud* 3,000,000£             Business Support TBC 500 £27.0 £0.0 20292 1.37 0 0 N/A

Farm 491 2,920,000£             Business Support 0 207 £0.8 £0.0 1380 0 0 0 N/A

Glos Airport Anson Park Development* 1,885,000£             Business Support 0 85 £7.0 £0.0 7500 4 0 0 N/A

Glos Airport South Camp 550,000£                Business Support 0 106 £9.7 £0.0 12000 6.8 0 0 N/A

UK Digital Retail Innovation Centre 400,000£                Business Support 0 50 £0.2 £0.0 550 0 150 0 N/A

Cheltenham Cyber Park * 22,000,000£           Enabling Infrastructure 1100 7500 £50.0 £0.0 40000 45 0 0 N/A

Cinderford Northern Link Road 3,800,000£             Enabling Infrastructure 110 0 £0.0 £5.3 0 2 0 0 N/A

Gloucester Railway Station Improvements* 3,750,000£             Enabling Infrastructure 200 300 £7.7 £0.6 10000 5.3 0 0 N/A

A40 Innsworth Gateway* 4,530,000£             Housing 1300 630 £3.3 £0.0 5000 8.3 0 0 TBC

Blackfriars & Quayside 4,130,000£             Housing 179 45 £85.0 £12.0 4000 2.5 0 0 N/A

Hartpury College, Tech‐to‐Plate 1,000,000£             Innovation 0 15 £0.0 £0.0 0 0.0 500 0 N/A

GREEN Skills Centre 5,000,000£             Skills 0 125 £19.5 £15.1 0 10.7 4401 300 N/A

Berkeley Green Cyber Security Centre 3,000,000£             Skills 0 127 £4.0 £0.4 1461 0 1461 213 N/A

Cinderford  ‐ New Gloscol Campus * 2,600,000£             Skills 55 150 £0.0 £12.5 0 0 6000 0 N/A

Gloucestershire STEM centres 2,096,000£             Skills 0 0 £0.0 £3.8 0 0 6141 1064 N/A

Elmbridge (Tail‐end Major road scheme) 9,070,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £5.2 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester Transport Hub ** 6,400,000£             Transport 100 0 £40.0 £8.8 1000 0 0 0 N/A

A419 Stonehouse Improvements 4,360,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 18

A40 Over Roundabout ** 2,230,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.1 £0.5 0 0 0 0 5

Gloucester South West By Pass 2,000,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.1 £5.3 0 0 0 0 12

Berkeley Bridge Replacement 1,990,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £1.0 0 0 0 0 5

B4063 Staverton Bridge Junction 1,600,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Cheltenham Spa Railway Station ** 1,497,000£             Transport 0 0 £1.8 £0.2 0 0 0 0 TBC

Lydney Transport Strategy 1,000,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

St Barnabas Roundabout 1,000,000£             Transport 0 0 £0.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 TBC

Abbeymead /Metz Way ** 500,000£                Transport 0 0 £1.0 £0.0 0 0 0 0 4

Forecast Totals* 101,708,000£    3044 16484 £257.2 £98.3 104660 86.0 22453 1577

Full Programme Commitment 2255 14280 N/A 75.3 N/A 1014
* for GD3 schemes includes outcomes post 2021

** Original GLTB scheme

£285.8

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Growth Deal Projects 'Forward Look' Key  Milestones (pipeline schemes)

(Based on latest  information at time of publication) Assessment/Due Diligence

Mar‐19 Inv Panel/LEP  Board

Rev 18 Funding agreement (subject to board approval)

Notes Formal project launch 

All pipeline projects are still subject to  investment appraisal and LEP Board approval  Start of construction/implementation

FY 2020/21 Q2 FY 2020/21 Q3 FY 2020/21 Q4

LGF 2021

Project Title Category Summary RAG Rating £m's Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul‐Sept Oct‐Dec Jan‐Mar

Growth Hub Expansion
Business 
Support

Expanded Core Growth Hub and New 
Business School @ UoG

£5.000

Growth Hub Network
Business 
Support

Network of Growth Hubs across the 
county

£4.400

Merrywalks Centre Stroud***
Business 
Support

Re‐development of the Merrywalks 
Shopping Center and Car‐Park

£3.000
Est 

Completion

Farm 491
Business 
Support

Agri‐tech innovation and business 
incubator centre (RAU)

£2.920

Gloucs Airport Anson Park 
Development***

Enabling 
Infrastructure

Access road from B4063 to expand 
Anson Park

£1.885 Due Diligence
Inv Panel/ 
Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Est Completion

Gloucs Airport South Camp
Enabling 

Infrastructure
New access road to open up land for 

development
£0.550

UK Digital Retail Innovation 
Centre

Business 
Support

Retail skills & digital high street pilot 
scheme

£0.400

WCTIS (Cyber Park) Phase 1
Enabling 

Infrastructure
A40 Corridor Mitigation Schemes £7.770 Due Diligence

Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Est Completion

Gloucester Railway Station 
Improvements***

Enabling 
Infrastructure

Redevelopment of underpass, 
frontage and car park access

£3.750 Due Diligence
Inv 

Panel/Board
Project 
Launch

Est Completion

Cinderford Northern Link Road
Enabling 

Infrastructure

Access road enabling new college 
campus and first phase of 

development of Northern Qtr, 
£3.800

A40 Innsworth Gateway Housing
Traffic mitigation to release a strategic 

housing site
£4.530 Due Diligence

Inv 
Panel/Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Est Completion

Blackfriars & Quayside Housing
De‐risking and preparation of site for 

development
£4.130

Hartpury College Tech to 
Plate***

Innovation
Application of Digital Productivity 
Tools in Livestock Management

£1.000
Funding 

Agreement
Project 
Launch

Construction 
start

Completion

GREEN Skills Centre Skills
Gloucs Renewable Energy, 

Engineering & Nuclear Skills Centre
£5.000

Berkley Green Cyber Security 
Centre

Skills
Cyber Security skills centre, dual 

location UoG & Berkely
£3.000

Gloucestershire College New 
Campus (Cinderford)

Skills
Funding to support build of new 
Gloscol campus in Cinderford

£2.600

Gloucestershire STEM centres Skills
STEM teaching facility upgrades at 5 

sites across Gloucs.
£2.096

Elmbridge (Tail End Major DfT 
scheme)

Transport
Major roundabout upgrade A40, key 

strategic route.
£9.070

Gloucester Transport Hub** Transport
New Transport Hub for Gloucester & 

highways mods
£6.400 Completion

A419 Stonehouse Improvements Transport
Junction improvements along A419 
between M5 J13 and Stonehouse

£4.360
Construction 

start
Est Completion

A40 Over Roundabout ** Transport
Widening approaches to the 

roundabout & provision of a third 
circulatory lane 

£2.230

Gloucester South West By Pass Transport
Widening of Llanthony Road section 

of South West bypass. 
£2.000

Construction 
start

Est Completion

A38 Berkeley Bridges Transport Replacement Northbound bridge £1.990

B4063 Staverton Bridge Junction Transport
Upgrade to the B4063/Old Gloucester 

Road junction
£1.600

Inv Panel & 
Board

Funding 
Agreement

Construction 
start

Est Completion

Cheltenham Spa Railway 
Station**

Transport
Improvement to station forecourt, 

additional parking and 
cycle/pedestrian access to A40

£1.497
Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Est 
Completion

Lydney Transport Strategy Transport
Local junction improvements and 

cycle access
£1.000 Inv Panel Board

Funding 
Agreement

Project 
Launch

Est 
Completion

St Barnabas Roundabout Transport
Roundabout upgrade, improved 

cycling safety
£1.000

Inv Panel & 
Board

Funding 
Agreement

Construction 
start

Est Completion

Abbeymead /Metz Way** Transport
Junction & Pedestrian Crossing 

upgrades (smart signals)
£0.500

Est 
Completion

* DfT 'Retained' scheme currently £87.478

** Original GLTB scheme £101.716

***Re‐allocated scheme £14.238

Detailed design, planning and procurement phase

Programme Development and Individual Scheme Approvals  Construction PhaseInv Panel/Board

Funding AgreementFull Business Case Development

Now complete and fully open

Construction Phase

Investment/Development Phase

In DeliveryConstruction Phase

Construction Phase

2018

FY 2019/20 Q3 FY 2019/20 Q4

2019

FY 2020/21 Q1FY 2019/20 Q2FY 2018/19 Q3 FY 2018/19 Q4 FY 2019/20 Q1

2020

In Delivery

Construction Phase

Construction Phase

Design & Planning Full Business Case Development

In Delivery (full network)

In Delivery 

In Delivery

Construction Phase

in Delivery 

In phased construction programme.

Planning Stage

Forest of Dean, Stroud and Cheltenham Tier 2 hubs in development & due to open in 2019. 

In Delivery 

Planning Stage

Construction Phase Soft Launch'

Construction Phase (potentially starting earlier at risk)

In Delivery

In Delivery

In Delivery

In Delivery

In Operation

In Operation

In Operation

In Operation

In Operation

In Operation

Construction PhaseDetailed Design, Land Aquisition & Planning

Scheme Development

Construction Phase

Final Business case ‐ 
Due Diligence

Scheme Development

Final Business case ‐ 
Due Diligence

Construction Phase

Construction Phase

In Operation

In Operation

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTERSHIRE BUSINESS RATES PILOT UPDATE

Date 20 March 2019

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Report author Andrew Cummings  
Head of Finance and Section 151 Officer at Stroud District Council
Tel: 01453 754115 Email: andrew.cummings@stroud.gov.uk 

Background 
documents

Report to GEGJC – 21 November 2018

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

N/A 

Main consultees Gloucestershire Chief Financial Officers

Planned dates N/A

Purpose of report To update members of the committee on the 2018/19 forecast of the 100% 
Business Rates Pilot and approve a process for future allocation of funding.

Recommendations The Committee:
1. Note the forecast for 2018/19 and 2019/20
2. Approve the process for allocation of funding

Reasons for 
recommendations

To update the Committee on the progress of the Business Rates pilot and 
the financial benefits that are likely to accrue. Also, to ensure there is an 
agreed process for the allocation of funds.

Resource 
Implications

There are no resource implications to implementing this recommendation.  
Pilot members must be aware of the risks associated with the 100% Pilot 
and Business Rates Pooling and make appropriate provision within their 
individual authorities.

Page 25

Agenda Item 7

mailto:andrew.cummings@stroud.gov.uk


Background 
1. The Local Government Finance Settlement in December 2019 confirmed that 

Gloucestershire was not successful in its bid for “Pilot” status for 2019/20.  Therefore, 
the 100% Business Rates Pilot in operation in 2018/19 is confirmed to be for one year 
only and comes to an end in March 2019. 

2. For 2019/20 Gloucestershire reverts to the previous 50% Retention Scheme with a pool 
arrangement in place to maximise the rates retained within Gloucestershire.  

3. In the years immediately preceding the pilot arrangement, Tewkesbury Borough 
Council withdrew from the Pool, primarily as a result of the risk generated by appeals 
within the District. The revised pool arrangement for 2019/20 has Tewkesbury return to 
the Pool which therefore now includes all Gloucestershire authorities.

4. There has been a change to the previously reported pool outturn gain for the pool for 
2017/18.  The overall net change is a reduction in pool gain by £21k.  However, the 
exact mechanics of this change result in an additional gain to the Strategic Economic 
Development Fund (SEDF) of £29k resulting in a final gain for 2017/18 of £827k.  

5. The change in 2017/18 results from a clarification of the appropriate calculation 
methodology by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government 
(MHCLG).

Financial Performance – Q3 2018/19 Update and 2019/20 forecast
6. The last update report to this Committee predicted that there would be a gain from the 

pilot to the SEDF of £2.9 million.  This was based on an overall gain from the pilot 
arrangements of £14.4 million.

7. The forecast based on a Quarter 3 position estimates that the level of Pilot benefit is 
around £15.3 million.  This increased pilot gain brings the estimated distribution of the 
pilot gain accruing to the SEDF to £3.06 million.

8. The distribution of the pilot benefit, which is based on the previously agreed 
methodology, is set out in the table below.

Distribution % Q3 
Forecast

Strategic Economic Development Fund 
(available to all Councils)

20% £3.06m

District Councils (for financial resilience or 
other uses including growth initiatives)

30% £4.59m

County Council (for financial resilience or 
other uses including growth initiatives)

50% £7.65m

9. The distribution methodology for splitting the district gain between the districts has now 
been agreed by the S151 Officer Group with each district receiving a share based on a 
fixed allocation plus a reward share for their contribution to business rates growth.

Page 26



10.As always with Business rates these figures are subject to change until final NNDR 
returns for the year are completed and 2018/19 allocations should be regarded as 
provisional until that point.

11. It has not been previously reported that the pilot gain in 2018/19 is actually a net figure 
after the calculation of what would have been achieved by the pool in 2018/19 if the 
pilot had not been in place.  This means that there is also a gain to the SEDF from that 
calculation.  The pool gain calculated is £3.3m of which the SEDF will receive £658k.

12.The completion of the NNDR 1 figures for 2019/20 in January 2019 has allowed the 
estimated gain from pooling in 2019/20 to be calculated.  This is currently expected to 
accrue a benefit of £3.2 million to the wider County of which £643k will accrue to the 
SEDF.  This figure is of course subject to change throughout 2019/20 and is not 
currently available for allocation.

13.Central Government has recently consulted on changes to the Business Rates 
retention system form 2020/21 onwards.  These changes are likely to result in the 
substantial revamp of the levy system.  The likely impact of that change will be to 
remove the economic incentive for pooling and as a result the funding stream for the 
SEDF.  A future report to the Committee will update on the future of pooling when more 
details are known.

14.The future projections for the SEDF balance including confirmed funding, provisional 
funding and agreed allocations are shown at Appendix A.

Considering areas of investment
15.At the November 2018 meeting, the Joint Committee requested the Senior Officer 

Group (SOG) to consider the eligibility criteria and project approval process for the 
assessment of future funding bids to/awards from the Strategic Economic Development 
Fund and make recommendations back to the Committee. 

16.SOG members have discussed an approach and the establishment of an assessment 
process, Accordingly, the following eligibility criteria and approval/decision making 
process have been suggested for the Joint Committee to consider and endorse:-
Eligibility Criteria and SEDF Application and Assessment Process:

 Any project/request needs to have a significant strategic economic growth focus, 
and can clearly demonstrate the economic benefits and contribution it is likely to 
make in supporting the delivery of growth of the local economy and communities;

 SEDF is revenue funding, so will be available to support a range of initiatives 
and projects such as direct support for economic growth projects, partnership 
support, enabling commissions of economic research, intelligence, feasibility 
studies and providing pump priming funding contributions or essential leverage 
to support the delivery of broader local economic projects/programmes.  

 Access to the fund is for the principle stakeholders only - the Local Authorities 
and Local Economic Partnership and any project or funding request will need to 
have a clearly identified sponsoring lead organisation/contact

Page 27



 Any initial ideas/proposals will need to complete an Expression of Interest 
template, to be submitted for consideration by the GEGJC Senior Officers 
Group, at a relevant meeting. This mirrors the same approach adopted for 
consideration of new projects for the Gloucestershire Capital Investment Pipeline 
(CIP).  

Decision/Approval of Funding:

 Projects will be prioritised which require one off, or fixed term funding 

 The Committee may require a formal agreement and/or apply binding conditions 
to any approved funding, to which the applicant body will be required to agree 
prior to any release of funding

 Any project requests considered appropriate and supported by the GEGJC 
Senior Officer Group, for funding consideration by the Joint Committee, will be 
incorporated into the papers for the next meeting, as part of the Business Rates 
Pool Report. Where appropriate, officers will make comments on the validity and 
priority of the bid against other potential commitments, for Members to consider. 
In addition, it is acknowledged that formal application requests for funding 
consideration may be made by Local Authority Members direct to the Joint 
Committee, where justified.

 Any approved funding requests will be subject to the confirmation of sufficient 
funds being available in the SEDF pot, during the relevant financial year, by the 
Council CFOs.

Risk Assessment
17.As always there is a risk to the business rates pilot and pool from the settling of 

backdated appeals.  The issue of NHS Trusts requesting charitable status remains the 
most significant financial risk to the pool and pool members.

Officer Advice
18.No officer advice required

Equalities considerations
19.There are no equalities considerations associated with this decision. It is purely a 

financial consideration.

Consultation feedback
20.Each of the Business Rates Pool members has been consulted about this report and 

support the recommendation.

Performance Management/follow-up
21. The position of the Business Rates Pilot for 2018/19 will be reported after the end of the 

financial year.  The revised business rates retention system can be reported to the 
Committee at a later date.

Page 28



Appendix A

Projected Balance of the SEDF

GEGJC 
Decision 
Date

2018/19
(£’000)

2019/20
(£’000)

2020/21
(£’000)

2021/22
(£’000)

Item 
Funding
SEDF Balance b/f 336 4,252 4,615 4,610
2017/18 Pool (confirmed) 828    
2018/19 Pilot Gain (indicative) 3,060    
Pool Gain (indicative) 658 643   
SEDF Funding 4,882 4,895 4,615 4,610

Allocations
Operating Costs for Joint 
Committee

Nov 17 (5) (5) (5) (5)

LEP Core Funding (Match) Nov 17 (250) (250) 0 0
LEP/LA Inward Investment 
Programme (EU Match)

Nov 17 (75) 0 0 0

J.10 Business Case Commission 
(contribution)

Nov 18 (275) 0 0 0

Economic Intelligence Data 
Commissioning Fund

Nov 18 (25) (25) 0 0

Total Allocations (630) (280) (5) (5)

SEDF Balance c/f 4,252 4,615 4,610 4,605

Note: Balance excluding 
indicative gains 534 254 249 244

Notes

 LEP Core Funding beyond 2019/20 subject to future decision and availability of funding
 SEDF balance held and accounted for by Gloucestershire County Council

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



STRATEGIC PLANNING IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE UPDATE

Date 20 March 2019

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC)

Report Author Mike Dawson
Chair of GEGJC Senior Officer Group
Tel: 01684 272001
E-mail: mike.dawson@tewkesbury.gov.uk

Background 
documents

N/A

Contact for 
inspection of 
background 
documents

N/A

Main Consultees N/A

Planned Dates N/A

Purpose of report This report provides an update on the status of the strategic plans 
that have been progressed by the Gloucestershire authorities and the 
levels of growth that have been identified and is being planned for 
within them.

Recommendations To note the update on the progress on strategic plan making by 
the Gloucestershire authorities, the amount of growth being 
planned for, and key delivery projects. 

Reason for 
recommendations

To ensure that the committee is aware of the status of strategic 
planning across the county.

Resource 
Implications

N/A

Page 31

Agenda Item 8

mailto:mike.dawson@tewkesbury.gov.uk


1. Introduction

1.1 Each of the Gloucestershire authorities have made significant progress with their 
strategic planning documents with the Joint Core Strategy (JCS) authorities, 
Cotswold, Stroud, and Forest of Dean having adopted plans in place. These plans 
set out the housing and employment growth requirements for their respective areas 
as well as identifying major development projects that will help to deliver it. This 
paper provides an update on these plans and some of the key projects.
 

1.2 The report below sets out the individual growth needs for each plan area. However, 
in total the strategic plans in Gloucestershire identify the need for a total of 61,500 
new homes and 342ha of employment land in the plan period to 2031.

2. Stroud District Local Plan

2.1 The Stroud District Local Plan was adopted in November 2015 and covers the 
period from 2006 to 2031. The plan identifies the following growth requirements:

 Housing: 11,400
 Employment land: 58ha
 Jobs: up to 12,500

2.2 To deliver the growth required, the local plan identifies are number of strategic sites 
that will meet a significant proportion of the housing requirement. These sites are 
as follows:

Site Homes Employment land 
(ha)

Hunts Grove Extension 750
Quedgeley East 13
North East Cam 450 12
Sharpness 300 17
Stroud Valleys 450
West of Stonehouse 1,350 10

2.3 Housing delivery has been strong within Stroud and as of 31st March 2018 there 
had already been 5,120 dwellings completed and a further 5,761 had received 
planning permission. The council can currently demonstrate an 8.53 years supply 
of housing land. As at 31st March 2018 employment land completions totalled 25 
hectares with 42 hectares having received permission.  

2.4 The council has already started a review of the plan to ensure that it remains up to 
date and meets future needs for the next 20 year period. The reviewed plan will 
cover the period from 2020-2040. An issues and options consultation was 
conducted in Autumn 2017 and an emerging strategy consultation was conducted 
in Autumn 2018. The growth strategy envisages delivering 12,800 new homes at a 
series of strategic locations including two new settlements. Adoption of the new 
plan is anticipated in 2021/22.

3. Joint Core Strategy

3.1 The Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (JCS) was 
adopted in December 2017 and covers the period between 2011 and 2031. The 
plan identifies the following growth requirements:

Page 32



 Homes: 35,175
 Employment land: 192ha
 Jobs: 39,500

3.2 To deliver this growth the JCS identifies a number of large strategic allocations as 
urban extensions to Gloucester and Cheltenham that will make a significant 
contribution to delivering both housing and employment growth. These are as 
follows:

Site Homes Employment land 
(ha)

Innsworth & Twigworth 2,295 9.1
South Churchdown 1,100 17.4
North Brockworth 1,500 3
North West Cheltenham 4,285 23.4
West Cheltenham 1,100 45
Ashchurch 14.3
Winneycroft 620

3.3 In addition to these allocations there had been joint working with Wychavon District 
Council on a site at Mitton, within Wychavon but on the edge of Tewkesbury town, 
contributing towards Tewkesbury’s housing needs. This site is currently subject to 
an outline planning application for 500 dwellings which is yet to be resolved.

3.4 The sites at Innsworth & Twigworth, North Brockworth, Ashchurch and Winneycroft 
are already subject to outline planning consents which cover a significant part, if not 
the entire, site. Reserved Matters applications have also been submitted for the first 
phases of development on these allocations. Part of the site at South Churchdown 
has received outline permission for 460 dwellings. The site at North West 
Cheltenham is currently subject of live planning applications and West Cheltenham 
is undergoing detailed pre-application discussions. None of the strategic allocations 
have yet started to deliver and the next key phase of the JCS is to work with 
developers and infrastructure providers to deliver these sites.

3.5 Delivery in the JCS are has been strong and as of 31st March 2018 9,936 dwellings 
had been built in the area with a further 16,534 dwellings committed through 
planning consents. 

3.6 The JCS commits to an immediate review on housing supply for Tewkesbury 
Borough and Gloucester as well as a retail/town centre review for the whole area. 
With regards to new homes, the JCS identifies a housing shortfall of around 2,400 
homes for Tewkesbury Borough and around 1,000 homes for Gloucester. In 
regards to retail, an immediate review is required to update an assessment of 
retails needs and to explore the allocation of strategic retail sites in accordance with 
a retail/town centre strategy. However, due to new requirements set out in the 
revised National Planning Policy Framework and to address wider delivery issues 
with the existing JCS, it is considered that this review will need be extended to be a 
comprehensive review of the plan.

3.7 To start this process the JCS Review Issues & Options consultation took place from 
November 2018 to January 2019. This consultation asked questions around all 
aspects of the review, including the extent of its scope and plan period to be 

Page 33



addressed. It is expected that a Draft JCS will be published in Autumn 2019.

3.8 Outside of the strategic allocations, each of the JCS authorities also has an 
identified district capacity which is to be met by smaller-scale allocations made 
through district-level plans that will sit underneath the JCS. These will be the 
Cheltenham Plan, the Gloucester City Plan and the Tewkesbury Borough Plan. The 
Cheltenham Plan is currently subject to its examination in public with hearing 
sessions taking place between 11th February and 1st March 2019. The Gloucester 
City Plan and Tewkesbury Borough Plan are expected to reach pre-submission 
stage in Summer 2019 and be submitted for examination later in 2019. 

4. Forest of Dean Core Strategy & Allocations Plan

4.1 The Forest of Dean Core Strategy was adopted on 2012 and covers the period 
from 2006 to 2026. An Allocations plan which incorporates a full review of housing 
requirements and makes allocations accordingly was adopted in 2018. The 
following growth requirements are identified:

 Housing: 6,600
 Employment land: 68ha

4.2 The Allocations Plan contains a large number of allocations of different scales 
across the settlements within the Forest of Dean.  Allocations at the larger 
settlements are as follows:

Site Homes Employment land (ha)
Cinderford (inc approx. 240 
homes in Nothern Quarter*) 515 12

Coleford 500 8
Lydney 1850 40
Newent 420 5
Tutshill/Sedbury 240
Other Villages 510

* as identified in the 2012 adopted Cinderford Northern Quarter Area Action Plan

The plan period runs from 2006 to 2026 and about 3282 dwellings (net) of the 20 
year requirement of 6600 had been completed up to March 31 2018.

5. Cotswold District Local Plan

5.1 The Cotswold District Local Plan was adopted on 3rd August 2018 and covers the 
period from 2011 to 2031. This plan includes both a core strategy and site 
allocations. The plan identifies the following growth requirements:

 Housing: 8,400
 Employment land: 24ha

5.2 The Local Plan presents a number of allocations across 17 Principal Settlements. 
The majority of allocations are smaller scale sites. However, there is one strategic 
scale allocation at land south of Chesterton, Cirencester that will make a significant 
contribution towards the District’s needs. Planning permission has been granted 
subject to signing a S106 agreement. The larger sites include the following:

Page 34



Site Homes Employment land (ha)
Chesterton, Cirencester 2,350 (1,800 within 

Plan period)
9.1

Fosseway Ave, Moreton in 
Marsh 

119

Fire Services College, 
Moreton-In-Marsh

7.0

The District has seen 4,086 new dwellings built between April 2011 and March 
2018. In the 2017/18 monitoring year the District delivered 911 new dwellings. 

As of 1 April 2018 there were 4,817 dwellings that have been granted, or have a 
resolution to grant, planning permission that are under construction or have yet to 
start building. 

6. Key Delivery Projects

6.1 As the strategic plans move from adoption the next key step is facilitating the 
delivery of the plans and the growth objectives and site allocations set out within 
them. Some of the key projects currently underway are discussed below.

6.2 North West Cheltenham Strategic Allocation

A planning application for North West Cheltenham has been submitted jointly to 
Tewkesbury and Cheltenham Borough Councils. The councils are working closely 
with the developers and infrastructure providers to progress the application to 
ensure the timely delivery of development. Transport infrastructure is a key 
component of these discussions and how the traffic impact of the site is managed. 

6.3 West Cheltenham Cyber Park

The GFirst LEP, Cheltenham Borough Council, Gloucestershire County Council 
and Cheltenham Development Taskforce have been working on the development 
of a ‘cyber hub’ as part of the West Cheltenham strategic allocation. Through this 
work a successful bid was made for £22m funding to help deliver the development 
of the cyber hub. Close working is being undertaken with the developers and 
infrastructure providers to progress the site towards a planning application. 
Transport infrastructure is again key component of these discussions and how the 
traffic impact of the site is managed. The development of this site, as with North 
West Cheltenham, is linked to future improvement of M5 J10. A more detailed 
update on this project will be presented at a future GEGJC meeting. 

6.4 Junction 9/Ashchurch Masterplan

The Ashchurch Concept Masterplan was published in November 2018 and 
consulted on alongside the JCS Review Issues & Options. The masterplan 
identifies the potential for up to 10,000 homes and 120ha of employment land as 
well as associated infrastructure. This work will help to inform the JCS review and 
see where short-term delivery is possible, but also taking a longer-term look at the 
growth and infrastructure requirements for the Borough. The next step is to develop 
a detailed Phase 1 masterplan to consider what could be delivered in the shorter-
term, this is expected to be published alongside the next Draft JCS in Autumn 
2019.  Associated work is underway with partners to promote road transport 
improvements to the A46 and M5 Junction 9, deliver improvements to local road 

Page 35



networks to support the delivery of phase 1 and implementation of a rail 
improvement strategy.

6.5 Strategic Site south of Chesterton, Cirencester

Land to the south of Chesterton, Cirencester is allocated for mixed use 
development including up to 2,350 dwellings that incorporates up to 40% affordable 
housing and approximately 9.1 hectares of B1, B2 and B8 employment land. It is 
anticipated that about 1,800 dwellings will be completed during the plan period with 
the remainder coming forward after 2031. The policy requires development of the 
site to be master-planned and supported by a wide range of infrastructure including 
a school, healthcare and community facilities together with highways 
improvements.

In January 2018 Cotswold District Council granted outline planning permission for 
development of the site by Bathurst Development Ltd, subject to the signing of a 
S106 agreement (ref: 16/00054/OUT).

6.6 Cinderford Northern Quarter
A mixed use regeneration area spearheaded by the new Gloucestershire College 
for the Forest now completed.  Includes housing and employment allocations and a 
spine road the first phase of which is now complete.  Has been supported by HCA 
(as they then were) and land is in public ownership (FoDDC and Homes England).

6.7 Lydney Harbour Regeneration
A comprehensive scheme to safeguard and protect the docks and harbour and 
realise their full potential whilst supporting a major private sector investment for 
which a planning application is due shortly.  It is centred on a former factory, and 
will provide jobs and a recreational/ tourism opportunity.

6.8 West of Stonehouse Strategic Allocation

Outline planning permission for 1,350 dwellings, local centre and 10 hectares of 
employment land was granted in April 2016. Reserved matters were approved in 
May 2017 for infrastructure to serve Phase 1. Developers were on site September 
2017. Redrow and Barratt Homes/David Wilson Homes are delivering the first 
housing phases. The delivery of employment parcels is linked to progress with 
initial housing phases to ensure balanced growth of homes and jobs. The 
implementation of phases is being managed via area masterplans. 

6.9 Hunts Grove Extension/Quedgeley East Strategic Allocations

A renegotiated outline permission for Hunts Grove was granted in July 2016 for 
1,750 dwellings, school and local centre. 412 dwellings have been built to date. An 
application for Hunts Grove Extension (750 dwellings) is expected by late spring 
2019. Crest Nicholson will oversee delivery as main developer with partner 
developers building out sub areas within the masterplan. An outline permission for 
25 hectares of employment land at Quedgeley East was granted in November 2018 
subject to delivering M5 J12 improvements. Capacity issues remain at M5 J12. 

7. Strategic Planning Matters

7.1 Revised National Planning Policy Framework 

Page 36



A revised NPPF was published in July 2018 and was subsequently updated in 
February 2019. The revised NPPF sets out a number of policy changes and 
requirements that will need to be taken into account in future strategic plan making. 
Of most prominence (but by no means exhaustive) is the introduction of a standard 
methodology for calculating housing requirements (see below), the Housing 
Delivery Test to monitoring performance against housing requirements, a more 
stringent test for plan making within the green belt and a requirement to deliver 
more small and medium sized housing sites. The duty to cooperate is maintained 
and there is a requirement to prepare statements of common to document the 
cross-boundary matters being addressed and progress in cooperating to address 
these issues. 

7.2 Standard Methodology for Housing Needs

The revised NPPF sets out that, to determine the minimum number of homes 
needed, strategic policies should be informed by a local housing need assessment, 
conducted using a standard method set out in the accompanying national planning 
guidance. This is to be followed unless exceptional circumstances justify an
alternative approach.
As the Gloucestershire authorities have recently adopted plans containing housing 
requirements then these can continue to be used. However, the new standard 
methodology will need to be applied through the future plan review processes.  

7.3 Gloucestershire Strategic Planning Statement of Common Ground

The Committee has agreed to the preparation of a strategic planning framework for 
Gloucestershire and the Strategic Planning Co-ordinator has been appointed to 
lead and guide this work. This commitment is being taken forward through the 
preparation of a statement of common ground which will be entered into by the six 
local planning authorities, the County Council and GFirst LEP. 

This strategic framework would set out an agreed long-term view of growth in the 
county. This would allow the local planning authorities to continue to deliver current 
and future spatial plans and policies, while enabling them to work together to 
determine a coordinated approach to future strategic planning in the county. This 
would improve strategic planning coordination, cooperation and communication to 
avoid potential conflict between plans and partners.

Each of the Councils are taking reports to their respective Councils in Spring 2019 
to seek endorsement of this approach and it is anticipated that the statement will be 
completed by Spring 2020.

8. Next Steps

8.1 More detailed reports on the key projects development projects will be reported 
back to GEGJC in the near future.  

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



BARRIERS TO DEVELOPMENT ACTION PLAN

Date 20 March 2019

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee (GEGJC)

Report Author Mike Dawson
Chair of GEGJC Senior Officer Group
Tel: 01684 272001
E-mail: mike.dawson@tewkesbury.gov.uk

Background 
documents

Barriers to Development Report – GEGJC 20 June 2018

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Committee web-site at 
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk

Main Consultees N/A

Planned Dates N/A

Purpose of report To provide an update on the progress of the Barriers to Development 
Group Action Plan and to recommend endorsement of the Planning 
and Development Charter. 

Recommendations 1. To note the work undertaken by the ‘Barriers to 
Development’ Task Group against the action plan; and

2. To endorse the Planning Development Charter.

Reason for 
recommendations

To update members on progress and to demonstrate commitment to 
the delivery of the county’s growth aspirations by endorsing the 
Planning and Development Charter.

Resource 
Implications

There are no direct resource implications arising from this report, 
however there may be future funding requirements associated with 
implementing the action plan as the proposals develop. These will be 
reported as they arise and are likely to need approval by the 
constituent authorities.

Page 39

mailto:mike.dawson@tewkesbury.gov.uk
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/


1. Introduction

1.1 In June 2018 a report was presented to Joint Committee detailing progress of the 
Barriers to Development work being undertaken in the County which was set out 
within the Barriers to Development Action Plan.  

1.2 By way of background, this work initially emerged from the GFirst LEP Construction 
and Infrastructure Group (C&I Group) which aims ‘to support the Growth Zone theme 
of the Strategic Economic Plan (SEP) to identify and facilitate planning of 
employment land in the M5 corridor of the county’.  One of the objectives of this group 
is to help improve future development opportunities and achieve positive engagement 
with the local planning process. The work undertaken by officers of the 
Gloucestershire planning authorities jointly with the C&I Group aims to facilitate 
easier interpretation of and a consistent approach to planning issues and to 
demonstrate support to deliver planned growth in the County.

1.3 A number of initial meetings and a workshop session were held in 2018 attended by a 
range of officers and development industry representatives. These meetings led to 
the establishment of a Barriers to Development Task Group and development of the 
Barriers to Development Action Plan endorsed by the Committee in June 2018. Since 
that time progress has been made in a number of areas and this is set out below.

 Planning Development Charter 

The Task group has prepared a joint Charter which sets out a range of 
pledges, values and actions from the Local Planning Authorities in respect of 
the operation of the planning system alongside expectations of actions from 
developers in the process. The Planning Development Charter is attached at 
appendix 1 and it is proposed that the Charter is endorsed by the Committee 
and the G First LEP Board.  

 Validation checklist

Validation lists are prepared by local authorities to let developers know the 
nature and type of information that is required before a planning application 
can be formally validated. This is the first step in the assessment of the 
application.  Often this can take time to get this right and causes delay in the 
processing of planning applications.  Across the authorities there were a 
variety of lists, some of which were out of date which led to inconsistencies 
being experienced by developers.  A common checklist has now been 
prepared for use across the whole county which is colour coded for each 
individual authority for ease of use for developers. 

  
 Common Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) template 

The purpose of a PPA is to agree a timetable between the applicant and the 
local authority in respect of individual planning applications. This gives the 
applicant assurance in respect of the time to deal with the application and 
greater understanding of the engagement required by the planning authority. 
A PPA is subject to the payment of an additional fee to recover direct costs 

Page 40



incurred.  PPA procedures vary between councils however, a common county 
wide PPA template has now been developed and is currently being piloted in 
a number of authorities. The aim of a common PPA is to provide consistency 
and allow a quicker process for agreeing a PPA and should be welcomed by 
developers. 

 Planning Key Topic and Issues Training Session. 

This event for planning professionals and developers was held in January 
2019. The event was hosted by private sector developers within the county 
and allowed for the sharing of best practice across the both private and public 
sectors.

 Highways and Development Management 

The ability of the county council to respond in a timely manner to planning 
application consultations is crucial to the speed in which these applications 
can be processed.  This issue is very much affected by the extent of 
resources available. The Task Group has worked with the Development 
Management Highways Team to ensure they are able to respond effectively 
to planning applications.  Similarly a process to allow S278 (Highways) 
agreements and S106 (Planning) agreements to be prepared in parallel to 
allow speedier decision making is being piloted.  This continues to be a key 
piece of work and will remain a focus for action.    

 Webpages 

Officers from the planning authorities have prepared a dedicated webpage to 
be hosted on the County Website headed up as ‘Facilitating growth in 
Gloucestershire by removing barriers to sustainable development’.  This sets 
out the overall growth strategy and will hold the Charter, once endorsed, the 
validation checklist, the common PPA template and can act as repository for 
any other key information for developers and the public.  

2. The Proposed Way Forward

2.1 It is proposed that:

1) The Planning Development Charter is endorsed by the Committee. 

2) The Task Group continues to undertake measures to improve processes 
within each local planning authority area and collectively across the 
county. 

3) Further update reports are provided to the Committee as required.

3. Options

3.1 Not applicable at this time.

Page 41



4. Risk Assessment

4.1 Not applicable at this time.

5. Officer Advice

5.1 Contained in the report.

6. Equalities Considerations

6.1 Not applicable at this time.

7. Consultation Feedback

7.1 None

8. Performance Management/follow up

8.1 Further reports on progress on the action plan to be presented to the committee.

Page 42



Policy:
We will develop and continue to update our development plan 
documents to give clarity and certainty over development 
opportunities, and help inform investment decisions.

Pre-application planning advice:
We will seek to provide a pre-application planning advice that 
meets customers’ needs.

Partnership:
We will work in partnership with our customers and 
stakeholders to bring forward applications that facilitate high 
quality development projects across Gloucestershire.

Understanding deliverability and viability:
We will work with customers to understand their business 
needs and development proposals in order to understand 
viability and deliverability.

Determining planning application:
We will work to ensure valid planning applications are 
determined in a comprehensive, accurate and timely manner so 
that our customers and stakeholders are notified of the 
outcome of planning applications in the shortest period of time 
possible.

We operate in a business-like manner; working with our 
customers to understand their needs and constraints to bring 
forward their development proposals.

We are committed to communicating effectively with all our 
customers; we employ a number of accessible means for all our 
customers to contact us.

We work with our customers to work through challenges and 
constraints to facilitate high quality development for all.

We adopt a ‘can do’ approach and willingness to explore ideas 
and options for development proposals with our customers.

Overall we employ a pragmatic and customer friendly approach 
to managing development related enquires and planning 
applications.

Pre-application
Positively engage with sufficient information to allow local 
authorities to understand the proposal.

Positively engage with the local community and stakeholders in 
accordance with Gloucestershire District and County Councils 
Statement of Community Involvement.

Demonstrate how subsequent applications have incorporated 
advice from the pre-application process.

Application
Submit planning application that adheres to the local authorities 
validation checklist.

Submitted technical information should be incorporated into a 
comprehensive scheme.

Engage in negotiations to seek to resolve matters arising.

Planning development charter
Endorsed by all the Gloucestershire local authorities and the Local Enterprise Partnership in 2019, the Planning and 

Development Charter and Action Plan for improvement, ensures that the approach to planning in Gloucestershire is fit 
for purpose - business friendly and is supported by Members and Officers of the local authorities. Critically, it 
demonstrates that planning in Gloucestershire will support the delivery of growth by facilitating and enabling 

investment and sustainable development.

Tewkesbury
Borough Council

Charter pledges 

Developing in 
Gloucestershire 

Values and behaviours 

Our expectations from
developers 

We work in partnership with our customers and stakeholders to 
achieve high quality sustainable development in 
Gloucestershire in line with local planning policy.

We work in a flexible way to meet the needs of our customers 
and, where possible, be adaptable in our approach to seek a 
positive outcome for both our customers and stakeholders.

We want to enable quality development in Gloucestershire that 
supports economic growth, and the social and environmental 
well-being of our communities.

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee - Forward Plan 2018/19 & 2019/20

March 2019

Meeting Date Subject Focus for Discussion Lead Amendments/Action 
Arising

21st November 2018 GFirst LEP Update To receive an update report incl Local Industrial 
Strategy (LIS) preparation plans

GFirst LEP

Gloucestershire Economic Growth 
Scrutiny Committee (GEGSC)

Activity Report GCC

Employment and Skills Update on the activities of the Gloucestershire 
Employment and Skills Board

GCC/LEP

Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool - Pilot resource allocation process
- Income analysis
- SEDF budget overview and  expenditure plans

SDC/GEGJC SOG

GEG CIP (GIIP) Update Re-presentation as the GEG CIP and 
Access/Mapping protocols

GEGJC SOG

Gloucestershire Strategic Planning Update report incl role of Leaders Board plus 
scrutiny etc

GEGJC SOG

Growth Delivery Monitoring Strategic project progress
Green Infrastructure policy pledges - progress

GEGJC SOG

20th March 2019 GFirst LEP Update To receive an update report incl Inward 
Investment Programme, Local Industrial 
Strategy (LIS) preparation plans

GFirst LEP

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Scrutiny Committee 
(GEGSC)

Activity Report (standing item) incl Glover 
Review outcome

GCC

Local Nature Partnership High quality growth through Green 
Infrastructure activity report

Doug Hulyer 
(Chair)

Gloucestershire Business Rates 
Pool (SEDF)

Review of forward funding arrangements 
for GFirst LEP, Pool income analysis & 
future spending plans for the SEDF

SDC/GEGJC 
SOG

Gloucestershire Strategic 
Planning & Growth Delivery 
Monitoring  

Update report, incl Local Plan position
J10 Business Case progress
Cyber Business Park presentation

TBC

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 10



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee - Forward Plan 2018/19 & 2019/20

March 2019

5th June 2019 Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny Committee 
(GEGJSC)

GCC

Local Transport Plan Review & consultation plan GCC
GFirst LEP Update, plus Local 
Industrial Strategy

Evidence base development & forward 
plan
Local Economic Forecasting Model  -
consideration of growth scenarios

GFirst LEP/GCC

Growth Delivery Monitoring  Strategic project progress, incl Cyber 
Business Park presentation

CBC

Digital Connectivity Full fibre & 5G enablement GCC … or possibly to be scheduled for 
September?

Local Developer Guide Refresh & 
CIL Governance 

Update report GCC

Vision 2050 Update report UoG/LG

4th September 2019 GFirst LEP Update GFirst LEP
Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny Committee 
(GEGJSC)

GCC

P
age 46



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee - Forward Plan 2018/19 & 2019/20

March 2019

20th November 
2019

GFirst LEP Update GFirst LEP

Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny Committee 
(GEGJSC)

GCC

Gloucestershire Business Rates 
Pool (SEDF)

Review of LEP core funding requirements GFirst 
LEP/SDC/GEGJC 

SOG

Unscheduled Items
Broadband and Mobile Provision Note – all Member briefing held July 13th 

2018
GEGJSC

Visitor Economy/Promotion of 
Gloucestershire*/Opportunities 
For Market Towns

Part of 20:50 item for March 2019 ?

Activities of the new GFirst Sector Group

GFirst LEP *Note – GCC full Council Motion 
28/3/18

Growth Hub service delivery 
briefing  

GFirst LEP

GCC Peer Review Implications for growth plans ??
Brexit Review of potential implications for 

Gloucestershire 
??

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership (GLNP)
	6 GFirst LEP Update
	Item 6 - Projects Outputs Summary Q3 18-19
	Item 6 - Growth Deal Forward Look (March 2019)

	7 Gloucestershire Business Rates Pilot Update
	8 Strategic Planning
	Item 8.2 Barriers Report
	Item 8.2 Appendix 1 Planning and Development Charter 2019

	10 Forward Plan

